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UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

1G 1:10 ORESTE,

M ARIE LUCIE TONDREAU,

a/k/a Gtzucie Tondreau,''

OKECHUK W U JOSIAH O DUNNA,

a/k/a ''O J Odunna,'' and@ @

KELLY AUGUSTIN,

Defendants.
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INDICTM ENT

The Grand Jury alleges that:

GENERAL ALLEGATIO NS

At various tim es relevant to this Indictm ent'.

KMC Mortgage Corporation Florida (hereinafter 'CKMC Mortgage

Corporation'') was a Florida corporation incoporated on August 26, 2004, with its principal place

th ite 901 North M iami Beach
, Florida 33162. KM Cof business listed as 633 NE 167 Street, Su ,

Mortgage Coporation was a mortgage lender business which originated mortgage loans and

packaged and subm itted m ortgage applications and related docum ents to lenders for funding.

Dired Title & Escrow Services, lnc. (hereinafter 'dDired Title'') was a Florida

cop oration incorporated on June 5, 2006, with its principal place of business listed as 2506 W est

Oakland Park Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, FL 3331 1. Direct Title was responsible for preparing
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settlement statements, issuing title commitments, disbursing mortgage proceeds, and ensuring that

relevant paperwork was properly completed for real estate closings.

3. O.J. Odurma, P.A. was a Florida corporation incoporated on July 6, 2004, with its

i i 1 lace of business listed as 7491 W est Oakland Park Boulevard, 20d Floor
, Lauderhill FLpr nc pa p ,

33319. O.J. Odunna, P.A. conducted closings on real estate transactions and was responsible for

preparing settlement statements, issuing commitment letters, disbursing mortgage proceeds, and

ensuring that relevant paperwork was properly completed for real estate closings.

4. JR lnvestment and M ortgage Corporation was a Florida corporation incorporated

J l 28 2003 with its principal place of business listed as 633 NE 167th street
, 901C, NorthOn tl y , ,

M iami Beach, FL 33162.

LTO Investment Corporation was a Florida corporation incorporated on M arch 31,

th Street 901 N orth M iam i Beach
,2006, with its principal place of business listed as 633 NE 167 , ,

FL 33162.

6.

ORESTE was the president of KM C M ortgage, JR lnvestment and M ortgage Corporation and

LTO Investment Comoration. ORESTE hosted

Defendant 1G 1:1u ORESTE was a resident of M iami-Dade County, Florida.

several radio show programs in the South

Florida area which advertised residential loans offered by KMC M ortgage. ORESTE recruited

straw borrowers to be used in the purchase of residential properties.

Defendant M ARIE LUCIE TONDREAU, a/k/a çsluucie Tondreauy'' was a

resident of M iami-Dade County, Florida,and was the vice president of LTO lnvestment

Corporation. TONDREAU along with ORESTE hosted several radio show programs in the
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South Florida area which advertised residential loans offered by KM C M ortgage. TONDREAU

recruited straw borrowers to be used in the purchase of residential properties.

8. Defendant OKECHUKW U JOSIAH ODUNNA, a/k/a ''O.J. Odunna,'' was a

resident of Broward County, Florida. He was also an attonzey licensed to practice in Florida from

December 4, 2002, through January 21, 2010. ODUNNA was the president of O.J. Odunna, P.A.

and director of Direct Title. ODUNNA was a closing agent who conducted real estate closings at

Direct Title and O.J. Odunna P.A.

9. Defendant KELLY AUGUSTIN was a resident of M iami-Dade County, and was

an employee of KM C M ortgage.

purchase of residential properties.

HSBC M ortgage Corporation was a residential mortgage lender and originator.

lts headquarters were located at 2929 W alden Avenue, Depew, NY. HSBC M ortgage

AUGUSTIN recruited straw borrowers to be used in the

Comoration operated as a subsidiary of HSBC Bank, USA, N.A., a federally insured financial

institution, as defined in Title 1 8, United States Code, Section 20.

1 1 . National City Mortgage Company was a residential mortgage lender and

originator. Its headquarters were located at 3232 Nem nark Drive, M iamisburg, Ohio. National

City Mortgage Company was a division of National City Bank of lndiana, a federally insured

financial institution as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 20.

12. W achovia M ortgage, FSB was a residential mortgage lender and originator.

W achovia M ortgage, FSB was a division of W ells Fargo Bank, N.A., tka W orld Savings Bank,

and was a federally insured financial institution as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section

20.
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13. Argent M ortgage Company Argent M ortgage Company was a California

corporation doing business as a mortgage lender throughout the United States, including the State

of Florida.

14. First NLC Financial Services, LLC was a Florida corporation doing business as a

mortgage lender throughout the United States, including in the State of Florida.

15. First Magnus Financial Corporation was an Arizona comoration doing business as

a mortgage lender throughout the United States, including in the State of Florida.

16. W M C M ortgage Corporation was a Califomia comoration doing business as a

mortgage lender tlzroughout the United States, including in the State of Florida.

Liberty Home Lending, lnc. was a Florida corporation doing business as a

mortgage lender throughout the United States, including in the State of Florida.

PURCH ASE AND SALE OF REAL ESTATE

18. Purchasers of residential property, commonly referred to as the borrowerts),

frequently finance the purchase of real estate by obtaining a mortgage loan tllrough a mortgage

lender. The term ççlenders'' refers collectively to the mortgage lenders set forth in the preceding

paragraphs 10 through 17, each of which extended mortgage loans and disbursed mortgage loan

proceeds to fund the financing of residential properties in the State of Florida. The lender was

often referred to as the ttlien holder.''

19. As part of the mortgage lending process, mortgage brokers, for a fee, fill out and

submit to the lenders on behalf of the borrower, various forms necessary for the lender to consider

in deciding whether to approve the loan. Am ong the custom ary form s are: the Uniform

Residential Loan Application tForm 1003); the Request for Verification of Employment (Form

4
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1005); the Request for Veritication of Deposit tFonn 1006); and other documents such as Lease

Agreements and Letters of Explanation.

20. The term fimortgage'' is used in the real estate industry to refer to a loan to finance

the purchase of real estate property, usually with specific payment periods and interest rates, in

which the borrower/mortgagor gave the lender/mortgagee a lien in the property as collateral for the

loan. Generally, upon approval and prior to the closing of the loan, the lender will fund the loan

by sending the funds by wire transfer to the bank account of the closing agency responsible for the

closing. The closing agency is then responsible for disbursing these funds to the appropriate

parties.

Once the loan is approved by the lender, a closing on the property is scheduled. At

the closing, the closing agency rtsponsible for the closing, ading for and on behalf of the mortgage

lender, is required by the mortgage lender to prepare a Settlement Statement (hereinafter 'IHUD-I

Settlement Statement'') showing the receipt and disbursement of aIl funds, that is, the funds paid in

by the borrower, the funds furnished by the borrower's lender, the funds due to the seller and

closing costs and expenses. The HUD-I Settlement Statement also reflects the prorations, escrow

deposits, the seller's mortgages to be paid off if applicable, and miscellaneous obligations to be

paid off. The closing agency responsible for the closing will collect any additional funds due

from the borrower at the closing and will disburse funds due to the seller and/or borrower. The

borrower and seller will sign various legal documents at the closing, including the warranty deed,

note, mortgage, occupancy affidavits, final Unifonn Residential Loan Application tForm 1003),

HUD-I Settlement Statement, and lender disclosure docum ents. The closing agency responsible

for the closing will then issue a final title insurance policy to the borrower and lender showing the

new owner, legal description, m ortgage amount and exceptions to the policy.

Case 1:14-cr-20349-RNS   Document 3   Entered on FLSD Docket 05/16/2014   Page 5 of 20



22. The closing agency responsible for the closing for the mortgage lender has a

fiduciary responsibility to the mortgage lender to hold the borrowed loan funds in a trust/escrow

bnnk account. The closing agency responsible for the closing, as a fiduciary, is required to collect

all necessary funds, to dîsburse all funds to the appropriate parties and to account for all monies

disbursed at closing. The closing agency responsible for the closing is obligated to adhere to the

mortgage lender's closing instructions, and must obtain and send back to the mortgage lender,

signed and executed documents that the lender requests, including the final HUD-I Settlement

Statement.

23. A straw borrower is an individual who allows his/her identity and credit to be used

to purchase property for another person, usually in exchange for a fee, in order to conceal the

identity of the true purchaser or the tnze nature of the transaction.

24. The terms l%good faith deposit'' and çlearnest money deposit'' were used in the real

estate industry to refer to the monetary obligation to be made by a party, usually the buyer, to

indicate the buyer's intention to pursue a particular real estate property purchase, and in order for a

closing on a particular real estate transaction to be completed.

ticash-to-close'' refers to the monetary obligations to be met by an individual,

usually the buyer, in order for a closing on a particular real estate transadion to be completed.

CO UNT 1

CONSPIRACY TO COM M IT W IRE FR AUD

(18 U.S.C. 51349)

1 . Paragraphs 1 through 25 of the General Allegations section of this Indictment are

re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

6
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From in or around December 2005, and continuing through in or around May 2008,

the exact dates being urlknown to the Grand Jury, in M inmi-Dade County, in the Southern District

of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

KARL ORESTE,
M ARIE LUCIE TONDREAU,

a/k/a isluucie Tondreau,''

OKECHUKW U JOSIAH ODUNNA,
a/k/a C6O.J. O dunna,* and

KELLY AUGUSTIN,

intent to further the object of the conspiracy, and knowinglydid willfully, that is, with the

combine, conspire, confederate, and agree with each other, and others known and unknown to the

Grand Jury, to commit an offense against the United States, that is, to knowingly and with intent to

defraud, devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud and to obtain money and

property by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises,

knowing that they were false and fraudulent when made, and to knowingly transmit and cause to

be transmitted by means of wire communication in interstate commerce any writings, signs,

signals, pictures, and sounds, for the purpose of executing the scheme and artifice, and affecting a

financial institution, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.

3.

PURPOSE OF THE CONSPIM CY

It was the purpose of the conspiracy for the defendants, and their co-conspirators to

unlawfully enrich themselves by, among other things: (a) using straw borrowers to purchase

residential properties in Miami-Dade County, Florida; (b) submitting false and fraudulent loan

applications and related documents to lending institutions, thereby inducing the lending

institutions to make mortgage loans to straw borrowers for the purchase of residential properties;

(c) causing mortgage lenders, in some transactions, to loan more money than they otherwise would

have loaned by preparing and submitting to the lenders false and fraudulent HUD-I Settlement

7
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Statements that did not accurately reflect the purchase price of the properties and payments made

by the borrower; and (d) diverting fraud proceeds for their personal use and benefit, and to further

the fraud scheme.

M ANNER AND M EANS OF THE CONSPIM CY

The manner and means by which the defendants and their co-conspirators sought to

accomplish the object and purpose of the conspiracy included, among others, the following:

4. KARL ORESTE identified residential properties in the Southem District of

Florida for purchase through KM C M ortgage.

5. u 111, ORESTE and M ARIE LUCIE TONDREAU advertised residential loan

programs being offered by KM C Mortgage on local South Florida radio show progrnms.

ORESTE and TONDREAU recruited and paid some of those listeners who responded to the

advertisements, as well as other individuals, to pose as borrowers and ostensibly partieipate in the

purchase of the selected properties. The straw borrowers, in exchange for a fee, allowed their

identities and credit to be used by the conspirators to purchase property identified by ORESTE.

Straw borrowers did not make down payments or bring the cash needed to close on transactions

and understood that they would not be responsible for making monthly mortgage payments on the

properties.

6.

purchase of residential properties identified by KARL

M ortgage.

KELLY AUGUSTIN also recruited potential straw borrowers to be used in the

ORESTE for purchase through KM C

Co-conspirators prepared and caused to be prepared on behalf of the straw

bonowers fraudulent loan applications, which included false infonnation relating to employment,

wages, assets and intent to m ake the property being purchased a prim ary residence. These false

8
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and fraudulent loan applications and documents were submitted by co-conspirators to various

mortgage lenders throughout the United States.

8. In connection with the purchase of the properties, KARL ORESTE,

OKECHUKW U JOSIAH ODUNNA and other co-conspirators knowingly pxepared and caused

to be prepared false and fraudulent HUD-I Settlement Statements which, among other things,

falsely and fraudulently represented to the mortgage lenders that the straw borrowers had met their

down payment and cash to close obligations, when, in fact, the straw borrowers never made any

such payments.

9. ln connection with the purchase of certain of the properties, a co-conspirator

created multiple HUD-I Settlement Statements for the same transaction. W hile one settlement

statement was submitted to the mortgage lender (hereinafter the çilender HUD-1''), a second and

different settlement statement was submitted to the seller (hereinafter the Sdseller HUD- 1''). The

lender HUD-I reflected a higher purchase price than that reflected on the seller HUD-I and was

intended to conceal from the mortgage lender the actual purchase price and to induce the mortgage

lender to fund the property loans at a higher value. In this way, the lender HUD-I falsely and

fraudulently misrepreseùted to the mortgage lender the purchase price of the property and how the

loan proceeds were adually disbursed, including the amount of money that the seller received after

the closing of the properties.

10. Once the mortgage loan applications were approved, the falsely and fraudulently

obtained loan proceeds from the mortgage lending institutions would be wired in interstate

comm erce to Direct Title, O.J. Odunna, P.A . and other title com panies for distribution at the

closing of the residential sales transactions.

9
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1 1. A portion of the funds from the falsely and fraudulently obtained loan proceeds

were disbursed to JR lnvestment and Mortgage Corporation's bank accounts and other bank

accounts controlled by KARIU ORESTE, and to O.J. Odurma, P.A., and Dired Title accounts. In

most instances, these disbursements were not retlected on the lender HUD-I Settlement

Statements.

12. OKECHUKW U JOSIAH ODUNNA used a substantial portion of the falsely and

fraudulently obtained loan proceeds deposited into accounts controlled by him for his own

personal use and benefit.

u 111a ORESTE thereaher used the falsely and fraudulently obtained loan

proceeds held in JR lnvestment and M ortgage Corporation's bank accounts, and in other accounts

owned and controlled by ORESTE, for his own personal use and benetit, and to further the fraud.

On several occasions, ORESTE used the proceeds to pay recnliters, including M ARIE LUCIE

TONDREAU and KELLY AUGUSTIN, and to pay the straw borrowers, including E.P., M .J.,

Y.E., Y.J., K.A., L.D. and J.J. ORESTE also transferred a substantial portion of the funds to

LTO lnvestment Cop oration's bank accounts, which were controlled by TONDREAU .

14. Shortly after the closings on the real estate transadions, K *.11.1.u ORESTE rented

the properties to third parties despite representations in the loan applications that the properties

were not for investment and would be the borrowers' primary residences. M ARIE LUCIE

TONDREAU collected the rent payments from the tenants and deposited these payments into

LTO Investment Corporation's barlk accounts.

M ARIE LUCIE TONDREAU used the moneys deposited in LTO Investment

Corporation's bank accounts, whether from rents or from JR lnvestment and Mortgage

Corporation, to make payments on the falsely and fraudulently obtained mortgages in order to

10
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maintain the loans, and to conceal and further the fraud. TONDREAU also used a portion of the

funds deposited into LTO Investment Conpration's bank accounts for her own personal use and

benefit.

16. KELLY AUGUSTIN also made payments on the falsely and fraudulently

obtained mortgage loans in order to maintain the loans, and to conceal and further the fraud.

AUGUSTIN also used a portion of the loan proceeds for his own personal use and benetit.

17. Over the course of the conspiracy, the defendants fraudulently obtained loans on

approximately twenty (20) properties, for which the lenders have suffered losses in the amount of

approximately $8,000,000.00.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sedion 1349.

CO UNTS 2-7

W IRE FM UD AFFECTING A FINANCIAL INSTITUTION

(18 U.S.C. 551343 and 2)

1. Paragraphs 1 through 12 and 19 through 25 of the General Allegations section of

this Indictment are re-alleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

From in or around December 2005, and continuing through in or around M ay 2008,

the exact dates being unknown to the grand jury, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District

of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,

u 1:1a ORESTE,
M ARIE LUCIE TONDREAU,

a/k/a çdlaucie Tondreau,''

OKECHUKW U JOSIAH ODUNNA,

a/k/a ''O.J. Odunna,'' and

KELLY AUG USTIN,

did knowingly, and with intent to defraud, devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to

defraud and to obtain money and property by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations, and promises, knowing that they were false and fraudulent when made
, and did

1 1
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knowingly transmit and cause to be transmitted by means of wire communications in interstate

commerce, certain writings, signs, signals, pictures or sounds, for the purpose of executing the

scheme and artifice, and affecting a financial institution.

PURPOSE OF TH E SCHEM E AND ARTIFICE

3. It was the purpose of the scheme and artifice for the defendants and their

accomplices to unlawfully enrich themselves by, among other things: (a) using straw borrowers to

purchase and finance residential properties in Miami-Dade and Broward Counties, Florida; (b)

submitting false and fraudulent loan applications and related documents to lending institutions
,

thereby inducing the lending institutions to make mortgage loans to straw borrowers for the

purchase of residential properties; (c) causing mortgage lenders, in some transactions, to loan more

money than they otherwise would have loantd by preparing and submitting to the lenders false and

fraudulent HUD-I Settlement Statements that did not accurately reflect the purchase price of the

properties and payments made by borrowers; and (d) diverting fraud proceeds for their personal

use and benefit, and to further the fraud scheme.

SCHEM E AND ARTIFICE

Paragraph 4 through 16 of the M anner and M eans sedions of Count 1 of this

lndidment are realleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein as a

description of the schem e and artifice.

5.

USE O F THE W IRES

On or about the dates specified as to each count below, in M iami-Dade County, in

the Southern Distrid of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants, as specified below , for the purpose

of executing and in furtheralwe of the scheme and artitke to defraud and to obtain money and

property by means of false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and promises, did knowingly

12
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transmit and cause to be transmitted in interstate commerce by means of wire communication

certain writings, signs, signals, pidure, and sounds as more particularly described below:

COUNT APPROX. DEFENDANTS DESCRIPTION OF W IRE

DATE COM M UNICATION

2 June 9, 2006 KARL ORESTE W ire transfer in the amount of

and $277,501.34 from National City Bank of
M ARIE LUCIE lndiana, in M iamisburg, Ohio, to Land
TONDREAU Star Title, lnc.'s First Southern Bank

account # xxxxxxx306 in the Southern

District of Florida, relating to M .J.'S loan
f rt located at 16325 NE 6thor prope y

Avenue, N orth M iam i Beach, FL 33162

3 June 9, 2006 KARL ORESTE W ire transfer in the amount of

and $69,548.06 from National City Bank of
M ARIE LUCIE lndiana, in M iamisburg, Ohio, to Land

TONDREAU Star Title, Inc.'s First Southern Bank

account # xxxxxxx3o6 in the Southern

District of Florida, relating to M .J.'S loan
f rt located at 16325 NE 6thor prope y

Avenue, North M iami Beach, FL 33162

4 August 14, 2006 KARL ORESTE, W ire transfer in the amount of

OKECHUKW U $400,733.17 from HSBC M ortgage
JOSIAH ODUNNA Corporation in Depew, New York, to

and Direct Title & Escrow Services, Inc.'s
KELLY AUGUSTIN Colonial Bank account xxxxxx877 in the

Southem Distrid of Florida, relating to

L.D.'S loan for property located at 216
th street M iam i FL 33150N W  100 

, ,

August 14, 2006 KARIU ORESTE, W ire transfer in the amount of

OKECHUKW U $99,991.80 from HSBC M ortgage
JOSIAH ODUNNA Comoration in Depew, New York, to

and Direct Title & Escrow Services, Inc.'s

KELLY AUG USTIN Colonial Bank account 80xxxx877 in the

Southern District of Florida, relating to

L.D.'S loan for property located at 216
th street M iami FL 33150NW  100 

, ,

13
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6 August 25, 2006 KARL ORESTE, W ire transfer in the amount of

M ARIE LUCIE $640,564.41 from HSBC Mortgage
TONDREAU Corporation in Depew, New York, to

and Direct Title & Escrow Services, Inc.'s

OKECHUKW U Colonial Bank account xxxxxx877 in the

JOSIAH ODUNNA Southern District of Florida, relating to

E.P's loan for property located at 9906

N. M iami Ave., M iam i Shores, FL

33150

August 25, 2006 KARL ORESTE, W ire transfer in the amount of

M ARIE LUCIE $160,070.37 from HSBC Mortgage
TONDREAU Corporation in Depew, New York, to

and Direct Title & Escrow Services, lnc.'s

OKECHUKW U Colonial Bank account xxxxxx877 in the

JOSIAH ODUNNA Southern District of Florida, relating to

E.P's loan for property located at 9906

N. M iami Ave., M iami Shores, FL

33150

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1343 and 2.

FORFEITURE

The allegations of this Indictment are re-alleged and by this reference fully

incorporated herein for the purpose of alleging forfeiture to the United States of America of certain

property in which one or more of the defendants has an interest.

Upon conviction of a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sedion 1343, or a

conspiracy to commit such offense, as alleged in this lndictment, the defendants shall forfeit to the

United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 98 1(a)(1)(C), as incorporated by

Title 28, United States Code, Sedion 2461(c), any property, real or personal, whieh constitutes or

is derived from proceeds traceable to such violation.

The property subject to forfeiture includes, but is not limited to, the following:

(a) The sum of $4,691,568.55 in United States currency, which nmount is equal

14
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to the proceeds traceable to the commission of the violations alleged in this Indictment, which the

United States will seek as a forfeiture moneyjudgment as part of each defendant's sentence; and

b The real property located at 940 NW  206th street Miami Gardens
,( ) ,

M iami-Dade County, Florida 33169, together with all furniture, fixtures, attachments and

appurtenances therein and thereon, which is titled in the nam e of K ARL O RESTE and M .L.

All pursuant to Title 28, United States Code, Sedion 2461(c); Title 18, United States Code,

Section 98 1(a)(1)(C); and the procedures set forth at Title 21, United States Code, Section 853.

A TRUE BILL

V. A -qco
- gq/ 1X WIFREDO A

. FERRER

UNITED STATES ATTOM EY

OlS FOSTER-STEERS

ASSISTANT UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

15
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UNITED STATES DISTRIG  COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRIW  OF FLORIDA

UNITED STATES OF AM ERICA

VS.

KARL ORESTE, et aI.,

Defendants.
/

Court Division: (select One)

X Miami Key W est
FTL W PB FTP

I do hereby certify that:

CASE NO.

CERTIFICATE OF TRIAL ATTORNEY,

Superseding Case Information:

New Defendantts)
Number of New Defendants
Total number of counts

Yes No

I have carefully considered the allegations of the indictment, the number of defendants, the number of

probable witnesses and the legal complexities of the Indictment/lnformation attached hereto.

I am aware that the information supplied on this statement will be relied upon by the Judges of this Court in
setting their calendars and scheduling criminal trials under the mandate of the Speedy Trial Act, Title 28
U.S.C. Section 3161.

Interpreter: (Yes or No) NO
List Ianguage and/or dialect

This case will take 21-60 days for the parties to try.

Please check appropriate category and type of offense Iisted below:

(Check only one) (check only one)

4.

I 0 to 5 days
11 6 to 10 days
11 llto 20 days
IV 21 to 60 days
V: 61 days and over

6. Has this case been previously filed in this District Court? (Yes or No) NO
lf yes:
Judge: Case No.
(Attach copy of dispositive order)
Has a complaint been filed in this matter? (Yes or No)
If yes:
Magistrate Case No.
Related Miscellaneous numbers:
Defendantts) in federal custody as of
Defendantts) in state custody as of
Rule 20 from the Dlstrlct o

Is this a potential death penalty case? (Yes or No) NO

Petty
M inor
M isdem.

Felony XX

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Northern Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office prior to
October 14, 2003? Yes X No

Does this case originate from a matter pending in the Central Region of the U.S. Attorney's Office prior to
September 1, 2007? Yes X No

8.

*penalty Sheetts) attached

r

L FOSTER-STEERS
ASSISTANT UNITED STATES AU ORNEY
Florida Bar No. 0480509

REV 4/8/08
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: KARL ORESTE

Case No:

Counts #: 1 Conspiracy to Commit W ire Fraud Affecting a Financial lnstituti
on

18 U.S.C. j 1349

# M ax. Penalty: 30 years' im prisomnent

Counts #: 2-7 W ire Fraud Affecting a Financial lnstitution

18 U.S.C. j 1343

*M ax. Penalty: 30 years' im prisonment

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penaltv:

*Refers only to possible term of incarceration
, does not include possible fines, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable
.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SH EET

Defendant's Nam e: M ARIE LUCIE TONDREAU
. a/k/a lilvucie Tondreau''

Case No:

Counts #: 1 Conjpiracy yo Compit W ire Fraud Affecting a Financial lnstitution

18 U.S.C. j 1349

* M ax. Penalty: 30 years' im prisonment

Counts #: 2, 3, 6, 7 W ire Fraud Affecting a Financial lnstitution

18 U.S.C. j 1343

*M ax. Penalty: 30 years' imprisonment

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penaltv:

*Refers only to possible term  of incarceration, does not include possible fines
, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable
.

Case 1:14-cr-20349-RNS   Document 3   Entered on FLSD Docket 05/16/2014   Page 18 of 20



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Name: OKECHUKW U JOSIAH ODUNNA
. a/k/a CCO.J. Odunna''

Case No:

Counts #: 1 Conspàyacy to Commit Wire Fraud Affecting a Financj#l Institption

18 U.S.C. 9 1349

* M ax. Penalty: 30 years' imprisonm ent

Counts #: 4, 5, 6, 7 W ire Fraud Affecting a Financial lnstitution

18 U.S.C. j 1343

*M ax. Penalty: 30 years' imprisonment

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penaltv:

*Refers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines, restitution,
special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that may be applicable

.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

PENALTY SHEET

Defendant's Nam e: KELLY AUGUSTIN

Case No:

Counts #: 1 Conspiracy to Commit W iye Frapd Affecting a Financial Institution

18 U.S.C. j 1349

# M ax. Penalty'. 30 years' imprisonment

Counts #: 4, 5 W ire Fraud Affecting a Financial lnstitution

18 U.S.C. j 1343

*M ax. Penalty: 30 years' imprisonment

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penalty:

Count #:

*M ax. Penall :

*Refers only to possible term of incarceration, does not include possible fines
, restitution,

special assessm ents, parole term s, or forfeitures that m ay be applicable
.
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